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(b) No administrative stay is avail-
able following a final decision of the 
authority head.

§ 31.42 Judicial review. 
Section 3805 of title 31, United States 

Code, authorizes judicial review by an 
appropriate United States District 
Court of a final decision of the author-
ity head imposing penalties or assess-
ments under this part and specifies the 
procedures for such review.

§ 31.43 Collection of civil penalties and 
assessments. 

Sections 3806 and 3808(b) of title 31, 
United States Code, authorize actions 
for collection of civil penalties and as-
sessments imposed under this part and 
specify the procedures for such actions.

§ 31.44 Right to administrative offset. 
The amount of any penalty or assess-

ment which has become final, or for 
which a judgment has been entered 
under § 31.42 or § 31.43, or any amount 
agreed upon in a compromise or settle-
ment under § 31.46, may be collected by 
administrative offset under 31 U.S.C. 
3716, except that an administrative off-
set may not be made under this sub-
section against a refund of an overpay-
ment of Federal taxes, then or later 
owing by the United States to the de-
fendant.

§ 31.45 Deposit in Treasury of United 
States. 

All amounts collected pursuant to 
this part shall be deposited as miscella-
neous receipts in the Treasury of the 
United States, except as provided in 31 
U.S.C. 3806(g).

§ 31.46 Compromise or settlement. 
(a) Parties may make offers of com-

promise or settlement at any time. 
(b) The reviewing official has the ex-

clusive authority to compromise or 
settle a case under this part at any 
time after the date on which the re-
viewing official is permitted to issue a 
complaint and before the date on which 
the ALJ issues an initial decision. 

(c) The authority head has exclusive 
authority to compromise or settle a 
case under this part at any time after 
the date on which the ALJ issues an 
initial decision, except during the 

pendency of any review under § 31.42 or 
during the pendency of any action to 
collect penalties and assessments 
under § 31.43. 

(d) The Attorney General has exclu-
sive authority to compromise or settle 
a case under this part during the pend-
ency of any review under § 31.42 or of 
any action to recover penalties and as-
sessments under 31 U.S.C. 3806. 

(e) The investigating official may 
recommend settlement terms to the re-
viewing official, the authority head, or 
the Attorney General, as appropriate. 
The reviewing official may recommend 
settlement terms to the authority 
head, or the Attorney General, as ap-
propriate. 

(f) Any compromise or settlement 
must be in writing.

§ 31.47 Limitations. 

(a) The notice of hearing with respect 
to a claim or statement must be served 
in the manner specified in § 31.8 within 
6 years after the date on which such 
claim or statement is made. 

(b) If the defendant fails to serve a 
timely answer, service of a notice 
under § 31.10(b) shall be deemed a notice 
of hearing for purposes of this section. 

(c) The statute of limitations may be 
extended by agreement of the parties.

PART 32—GOVERNMENTWIDE RE-
QUIREMENTS FOR DRUG-FREE 
WORKPLACE (FINANCIAL ASSIST-
ANCE)

Subpart A—Purpose and Coverage

Sec.
32.100 What does this part do? 
32.105 Does this part apply to me? 
32.110 Are any of my Federal assistance 

awards exempt from this part? 
32.115 Does this part affect the Federal con-

tracts that I receive?

Subpart B—Requirements for Recipients 
Other Than Individuals

32.200 What must I do to comply with this 
part? 

32.205 What must I include in my drug-free 
workplace statement? 

32.210 To whom must I distribute my drug-
free workplace statement? 

32.215 What must I include in my drug-free 
awareness program? 
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32.220 By when must I publish my drug-free 
workplace statement and establish my 
drug-free awareness program? 

32.225 What actions must I take concerning 
employees who are convicted of drug vio-
lations in the workplace? 

32.230 How and when must I identify work-
places?

Subpart C—Requirements for Recipients 
Who Are Individuals

32.300 What must I do to comply with this 
part if I am an individual recipient? 

32.301 [Reserved]

Subpart D—Responsibilities of DOT 
Awarding Officials

32.400 What are my responsibilities as a 
DOT awarding official?

Subpart E—Violations of This Part and 
Consequences

32.500 How are violations of this part deter-
mined for recipients other than individ-
uals? 

32.505 How are violations of this part deter-
mined for recipients who are individuals? 

32.510 What actions will the Federal Gov-
ernment take against a recipient deter-
mined to have violated this part? 

32.515 Are there any exceptions to those ac-
tions?

Subpart F—Definitions

32.605 Award. 
32.610 Controlled substance. 
32.615 Conviction. 
32.620 Cooperative agreement. 
32.625 Criminal drug statute. 

32.630 Debarment. 
32.635 Drug-free workplace. 
32.640 Employee. 
32.645 Federal agency or agency. 
32.650 Grant. 
32.655 Individual. 
32.660 Recipient. 
32.665 State. 
32.670 Suspension.

AUTHORITY: 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.

SOURCE: 68 FR 66645, Nov. 26, 2003, unless 
otherwise noted.

Subpart A—Purpose and 
Coverage

§ 32.100 What does this part do? 
This part carries out the portion of 

the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 
(41 U.S.C. 701 et seq., as amended) that 
applies to grants. It also applies the 
provisions of the Act to cooperative 
agreements and other financial assist-
ance awards, as a matter of Federal 
Government policy.

§ 32.105 Does this part apply to me? 
(a) Portions of this part apply to you 

if you are either— 
(1) A recipient of an assistance award 

from the Department of Transpor-
tation; or 

(2) A(n) DOT awarding official. (See 
definitions of award and recipient in 
§§ 32.605 and 32.660, respectively.) 

(b) The following table shows the 
subparts that apply to you:

If you are . . . see subparts . . . 

(1) A recipient who is not an individual ....................................... A, B and E. 
(2) A recipient who is an individual ............................................. A, C and E. 
(3) A(n) DOT awarding official .................................................... A, D and E. 

§ 32.110 Are any of my Federal assist-
ance awards exempt from this part? 

This part does not apply to any 
award that the Secretary of Transpor-
tation determines that the application 
of this part would be inconsistent with 
the international obligations of the 
United States or the laws or regula-
tions of a foreign government.

§ 32.115 Does this part affect the Fed-
eral contracts that I receive? 

It will affect future contract awards 
indirectly if you are debarred or sus-

pended for a violation of the require-
ments of this part, as described in § 32. 
510(c). However, this part does not 
apply directly to procurement con-
tracts. The portion of the Drug-Free 
Workplace Act of 1988 that applies to 
Federal procurement contracts is car-
ried out through the Federal Acquisi-
tion Regulation in chapter 1 of Title 48 
of the Code of Federal Regulations (the 
drug-free workplace coverage currently 
is in 48 CFR part 23, subpart 23.5).
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Subpart B—Requirements for 
Recipients Other Than Individuals

§ 32.200 What must I do to comply with 
this part? 

There are two general requirements 
if you are a recipient other than an in-
dividual. 

(a) First, you must make a good faith 
effort, on a continuing basis, to main-
tain a drug-free workplace. You must 
agree to do so as a condition for receiv-
ing any award covered by this part. 
The specific measures that you must 
take in this regard are described in 
more detail in subsequent sections of 
this subpart. Briefly, those measures 
are to— 

(1) Publish a drug-free workplace 
statement and establish a drug-free 
awareness program for your employees 
(see §§ 32.205 through 32.220); and 

(2) Take actions concerning employ-
ees who are convicted of violating drug 
statutes in the workplace (see § 32.225). 

(b) Second, you must identify all 
known workplaces under your Federal 
awards (see § 32.230).

§ 32.205 What must I include in my 
drug-free workplace statement? 

You must publish a statement that— 
(a) Tells your employees that the un-

lawful manufacture, distribution, dis-
pensing, possession, or use of a con-
trolled substance is prohibited in your 
workplace; 

(b) Specifies the actions that you will 
take against employees for violating 
that prohibition; and 

(c) Lets each employee know that, as 
a condition of employment under any 
award, he or she: 

(1) Will abide by the terms of the 
statement; and 

(2) Must notify you in writing if he or 
she is convicted for a violation of a 
criminal drug statute occurring in the 
workplace and must do so no more 
than five calendar days after the con-
viction.

§ 32.210 To whom must I distribute my 
drug-free workplace statement? 

You must require that a copy of the 
statement described in § 32.205 be given 
to each employee who will be engaged 
in the performance of any Federal 
award.

§ 32.215 What must I include in my 
drug-free awareness program? 

You must establish an ongoing drug-
free awareness program to inform em-
ployees about— 

(a) The dangers of drug abuse in the 
workplace; 

(b) Your policy of maintaining a 
drug-free workplace; 

(c) Any available drug counseling, re-
habilitation, and employee assistance 
programs; and 

(d) The penalties that you may im-
pose upon them for drug abuse viola-
tions occurring in the workplace.

§ 32.220 By when must I publish my 
drug-free workplace statement and 
establish my drug-free awareness 
program? 

If you are a new recipient that does 
not already have a policy statement as 
described in § 32.205 and an ongoing 
awareness program as described in 
§ 32.215, you must publish the state-
ment and establish the program by the 
time given in the following table:

If . . . then you . . . 

(a) The performance period of the award is less than 30 days must have the policy statement and program in place as soon 
as possible, but before the date on which performance is ex-
pected to be completed. 

(b) The performance period of the award is 30 days or more ... must have the policy statement and program in place within 30 
days after award. 

(c) You believe there are extraordinary circumstances that will 
require more than 30 days for you to publish the policy state-
ment and establish the awareness program.

may ask the DOT awarding official to give you more time to do 
so. The amount of additional time, if any, to be given is at 
the discretion of the awarding official. 
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§ 32.225 What actions must I take con-
cerning employees who are con-
victed of drug violations in the 
workplace? 

There are two actions you must take 
if an employee is convicted of a drug 
violation in the workplace: 

(a) First, you must notify Federal 
agencies if an employee who is engaged 
in the performance of an award informs 
you about a conviction, as required by 
§ 32.205(c)(2), or you otherwise learn of 
the conviction. Your notification to 
the Federal agencies mustl 

(1) Be in writing; 
(2) Include the employee’s position 

title; 
(3) Include the identification num-

ber(s) of each affected award; 
(4) Be sent within ten calendar days 

after you learn of the conviction; and 
(5) Be sent to every Federal agency 

on whose award the convicted em-
ployee was working. It must be sent to 
every awarding official or his or her of-
ficial designee, unless the Federal 
agency has specified a central point for 
the receipt of the notices. 

(b) Second, within 30 calendar days of 
learning about an employee’s convic-
tion, you must eitherl 

(1) Take appropriate personnel action 
against the employee, up to and includ-
ing termination, consistent with the 
requirements of the Rehabilitation Act 
of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), as amended; or 

(2) Require the employee to partici-
pate satisfactorily in a drug abuse as-
sistance or rehabilitation program ap-
proved for these purposes by a Federal, 
State or local health, law enforcement, 
or other appropriate agency.

§ 32.230 How and when must I identify 
workplaces? 

(a) You must identify all known 
workplaces under each DOT award. A 
failure to do so is a violation of your 
drug-free workplace requirements. You 
may identify the workplacesl 

(1) To the DOT official that is mak-
ing the award, either at the time of ap-
plication or upon award; or 

(2) In documents that you keep on 
file in your offices during the perform-
ance of the award, in which case you 
must make the information available 

for inspection upon request by DOT of-
ficials or their designated representa-
tives. 

(b) Your workplace identification for 
an award must include the actual ad-
dress of buildings (or parts of build-
ings) or other sites where work under 
the award takes place. Categorical de-
scriptions may be used (e.g., all vehi-
cles of a mass transit authority or 
State highway department while in op-
eration, State employees in each local 
unemployment office, performers in 
concert halls or radio studios). 

(c) If you identified workplaces to 
the DOT awarding official at the time 
of application or award, as described in 
paragraph (a)(1) of this section, and 
any workplace that you identified 
changes during the performance of the 
award, you must inform the DOT 
awarding official.

Subpart C—Requirements for 
Recipients Who Are Individuals

§ 32.300 What must I do to comply with 
this part if I am an individual re-
cipient? 

As a condition of receiving a(n) DOT 
award, if you are an individual recipi-
ent, you must agree that— 

(a) You will not engage in the unlaw-
ful manufacture, distribution, dis-
pensing, possession, or use of a con-
trolled substance in conducting any ac-
tivity related to the award; and 

(b) If you are convicted of a criminal 
drug offense resulting from a violation 
occurring during the conduct of any 
award activity, you will report the con-
viction: 

(1) In writing. 
(2) Within 10 calendar days of the 

conviction. 
(3) To the DOT awarding official or 

other designee for each award that you 
currently have, unless § 32.301 or the 
award document designates a central 
point for the receipt of the notices. 
When notice is made to a central point, 
it must include the identification num-
ber(s) of each affected award.
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§ 32.301 [Reserved]

Subpart D—Responsibilities of DOT 
Awarding Officials

§ 32.400 What are my responsibilities 
as a(n) DOT awarding official? 

As a(n) DOT awarding official, you 
must obtain each recipient’s agree-
ment, as a condition of the award, to 
comply with the requirements in— 

(a) Subpart B of this part, if the re-
cipient is not an individual; or 

(b) Subpart C of this part, if the re-
cipient is an individual.

Subpart E—Violations of this Part 
and Consequences

§ 32.500 How are violations of this part 
determined for recipients other 
than individuals? 

A recipient other than an individual 
is in violation of the requirements of 
this part if the Secretary of Transpor-
tation determines, in writing, that— 

(a) The recipient has violated the re-
quirements of subpart B of this part; or 

(b) The number of convictions of the 
recipient’s employees for violating 
criminal drug statutes in the work-
place is large enough to indicate that 
the recipient has failed to make a good 
faith effort to provide a drug-free 
workplace.

§ 32.505 How are violations of this part 
determined for recipients who are 
individuals? 

An individual recipient is in viola-
tion of the requirements of this part if 
the Secretary of Transportation deter-
mines, in writing, that— 

(a) The recipient has violated the re-
quirements of subpart C of this part; or 

(b) The recipient is convicted of a 
criminal drug offense resulting from a 
violation occurring during the conduct 
of any award activity.

§ 32.510 What actions will the Federal 
Government take against a recipi-
ent determined to have violated 
this part? 

If a recipient is determined to have 
violated this part, as described in 
§ 32.500 or § 32.505, the Department of 
Transportation may take one or more 
of the following actions— 

(a) Suspension of payments under the 
award; 

(b) Suspension or termination of the 
award; and 

(c) Suspension or debarment of the 
recipient under 49 CFR part 29, for a 
period not to exceed five years.

§ 32.515 Are there any exceptions to 
those actions? 

The Secretary of Transportation may 
waive with respect to a particular 
award, in writing, a suspension of pay-
ments under an award, suspension or 
termination of an award, or suspension 
or debarment of a recipient if the Sec-
retary of Transportation determines 
that such a waiver would be in the pub-
lic interest. This exception authority 
cannot be delegated to any other offi-
cial.

Subpart F—Definitions
§ 32.605 Award. 

Award means an award of financial 
assistance by the Department of Trans-
portation or other Federal agency di-
rectly to a recipient. 

(a) The term award includes: 
(1) A Federal grant or cooperative 

agreement, in the form of money or 
property in lieu of money. 

(2) A block grant or a grant in an en-
titlement program, whether or not the 
grant is exempted from coverage under 
the Governmentwide rule 49 CFR part 
18 that implements OMB Circular A–102 
(for availability, see 5 CFR 1310.3) and 
specifies uniform administrative re-
quirements. 

(b) The term award does not include: 
(1) Technical assistance that provides 

services instead of money. 
(2) Loans. 
(3) Loan guarantees. 
(4) Interest subsidies. 
(5) Insurance. 
(6) Direct appropriations. 
(7) Veterans’ benefits to individuals 

(i.e., any benefit to veterans, their fam-
ilies, or survivors by virtue of the serv-
ice of a veteran in the Armed Forces of 
the United States).

§ 32.610 Controlled substance. 
Controlled substance means a con-

trolled substance in schedules I 
through V of the Controlled Substances 
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Act (21 U.S.C. 812), and as further de-
fined by regulation at 21 CFR 1308.11 
through 1308.15.

§ 32.615 Conviction. 

Conviction means a finding of guilt 
(including a plea of nolo contendere) or 
imposition of sentence, or both, by any 
judicial body charged with the respon-
sibility to determine violations of the 
Federal or State criminal drug stat-
utes.

§ 32.620 Cooperative agreement. 

Cooperative agreement means an award 
of financial assistance that, consistent 
with 31 U.S.C. 6305, is used to enter into 
the same kind of relationship as a 
grant (see definition of grant in 
§ 32.650), except that substantial in-
volvement is expected between the 
Federal agency and the recipient when 
carrying out the activity contemplated 
by the award. The term does not in-
clude cooperative research and devel-
opment agreements as defined in 15 
U.S.C. 3710a.

§ 32.625 Criminal drug statute. 

Criminal drug statute means a Federal 
or non-Federal criminal statute involv-
ing the manufacture, distribution, dis-
pensing, use, or possession of any con-
trolled substance.

§ 32.630 Debarment. 

Debarment means an action taken by 
a Federal agency to prohibit a recipi-
ent from participating in Federal Gov-
ernment procurement contracts and 
covered nonprocurement transactions. 
A recipient so prohibited is debarred, 
in accordance with the Federal Acqui-
sition Regulation for procurement con-
tracts (48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4) and 
the common rule, Government-wide 
Debarment and Suspension (Non-
procurement), that implements Execu-
tive Order 12549 and Executive Order 
12689.

§ 32.635 Drug-free workplace. 

Drug-free workplace means a site for 
the performance of work done in con-
nection with a specific award at which 
employees of the recipient are prohib-
ited from engaging in the unlawful 
manufacture, distribution, dispensing, 

possession, or use of a controlled sub-
stance.

§ 32.640 Employee. 

(a) Employee means the employee of a 
recipient directly engaged in the per-
formance of work under the award, in-
cluding— 

(1) All direct charge employees; 
(2) All indirect charge employees, un-

less their impact or involvement in the 
performance of work under the award 
is insignificant to the performance of 
the award; and 

(3) Temporary personnel and consult-
ants who are directly engaged in the 
performance of work under the award 
and who are on the recipient’s payroll. 

(b) This definition does not include 
workers not on the payroll of the re-
cipient (e.g., volunteers, even if used to 
meet a matching requirement; consult-
ants or independent contractors not on 
the payroll; or employees of subrecipi-
ents or subcontractors in covered 
workplaces).

§ 32.645 Federal agency or agency. 

Federal agency or agency means any 
United States executive department, 
military department, government cor-
poration, government controlled cor-
poration, any other establishment in 
the executive branch (including the Ex-
ecutive Office of the President), or any 
independent regulatory agency.

§ 32.650 Grant. 
Grant means an award of financial as-

sistance that, consistent with 31 U.S.C. 
6304, is used to enter into a relation-
ship— 

(a) The principal purpose of which is 
to transfer a thing of value to the re-
cipient to carry out a public purpose of 
support or stimulation authorized by a 
law of the United States, rather than 
to acquire property or services for the 
Federal Government’s direct benefit or 
use; and 

(b) In which substantial involvement 
is not expected between the Federal 
agency and the recipient when carrying 
out the activity contemplated by the 
award.

§ 32.655 Individual. 
Individual means a natural person.
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§ 32.660 Recipient. 
Recipient means any individual, cor-

poration, partnership, association, unit 
of government (except a Federal agen-
cy) or legal entity, however organized, 
that receives an award directly from a 
Federal agency.

§ 32.665 State. 
State means any of the States of the 

United States, the District of Colum-
bia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, 
or any territory or possession of the 
United States.

§ 32.670 Suspension. 
Suspension means an action taken by 

a Federal agency that immediately 
prohibits a recipient from partici-
pating in Federal Government procure-
ment contracts and covered non-
procurement transactions for a tem-
porary period, pending completion of 
an investigation and any judicial or ad-
ministrative proceedings that may 
ensue. A recipient so prohibited is sus-
pended, in accordance with the Federal 
Acquisition Regulation for procure-
ment contracts (48 CFR part 9, subpart 
9.4) and the common rule, Government-
wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-
procurement), that implements Execu-
tive Order 12549 and Executive Order 
12689. Suspension of a recipient is a dis-
tinct and separate action from suspen-
sion of an award or suspension of pay-
ments under an award.

PART 37—TRANSPORTATION SERV-
ICES FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH DIS-
ABILITIES (ADA)

Subpart A—General

Sec.
37.1 Purpose. 
37.3 Definitions. 
37.5 Nondiscrimination. 
37.7 Standards for accessible vehicles. 
37.9 Standards for accessible transportation 

facilities. 
37.11 Administrative enforcement. 
37.13 Effective date for certain vehicle spec-

ifications. 
37.15 Temporary suspension of certain de-

tectable warning requirements. 
37.16–37.19 [Reserved]

Subpart B—Applicability

37.21 Applicability: General. 

37.23 Service under contract. 
37.25 University transportation systems. 
37.27 Transportation for elementary and 

secondary education systems. 
37.29 Private entities providing taxi service. 
37.31 Vanpools. 
37.33 Airport transportation systems. 
37.35 Supplemental service for other trans-

portation modes. 
37.37 Other applications. 
37.39 [Reserved]

Subpart C—Transportation Facilities

37.41 Construction of transportation facili-
ties by public entities. 

37.43 Alteration of transportation facilities 
by public entities. 

37.45 Construction and alteration of trans-
portation facilities by private entities. 

37.47 Key stations in light and rapid rail 
systems. 

37.49 Designation of responsible person(s) 
for intercity and commuter rail stations. 

37.51 Key stations in commuter rail sys-
tems. 

37.53 Exception for New York and Philadel-
phia. 

37.55 Intercity rail station accessibility. 
37.57 Required cooperation. 
37.59 Differences in accessibility completion 

dates. 
37.61 Public transportation programs and 

activities in existing facilities. 
37.63–37.69 [Reserved]

Subpart D—Acquisition of Accessible 
Vehicles by Public Entities

37.71 Purchase or lease of new non-rail vehi-
cles by public entities operating fixed 
route systems. 

37.73 Purchase or lease of used non-rail ve-
hicles by public entities operating fixed 
route systems. 

37.75 Remanufacture of non-rail vehicles 
and purchase or lease of remanufactured 
non-rail vehicles by public entities oper-
ating fixed route systems. 

37.77 Purchase or lease of new non-rail vehi-
cles by public entities operating a de-
mand responsive system for the general 
public. 

37.79 Purchase or lease of new rail vehicles 
by public entities operating rapid or 
light rail systems. 

37.81 Purchase or lease of used rail vehicles 
by public entities operating rapid or 
light rail systems. 

37.83 Remanufacture of rail vehicles and 
purchase or lease of remanufactured rail 
vehicles by public entities operating 
rapid or light rail systems. 

37.85 Purchase or lease of new intercity and 
commuter rail cars. 

37.87 Purchase or lease of used intercity and 
commuter rail cars. 
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